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The Border Islands

Throughout history, the islands of Iki, Tsushima, and the Goto
chain off the western coast of Kyushu have been at the
forefront of encounters and exchange between Japan and
continental Asia. Tombs and temples, sites of ancient settle-
ments and fortresses, and customs and rituals still practiced
today on these border islands tell a 2,300-year story of trade,
cultural interaction, and conflict.

Regular exchange among the peoples of the Japanese
archipelago and those of mainland Asia across the Tsushima

Strait, where Iki and Tsushima are located, is thought to have

started before the beginning of the common era. The earliest
written record of such interaction is found in the third-century
Book of Wei, part of the Chinese historical text Records of the Three Kingdoms.

An account in the Book of Wei of envoys from the state of Cao Wei journeying via the Korean
Peninsula to the Japanese kingdom of Yamatai includes descriptions of Tsushima and Harunotsuji, the
capital of the ancient kingdom of Iki. The history of this mercantile hub, where the people of Tki
exchanged wares and information with traders and travelers from the Korean Peninsula, China, and
mainland Japan, can be explored at the Harunotsuji Special Historic Site and in the adjacent Ikikoku
Museum. The early history of Tsushima is presented in detailed displays at the Tsushima Museum.

The kingdom of Iki is thought to have been conquered by forces from mainland Japan, which
in the sixth and seventh centuries used the island as a staging ground for warfare on the Korean
Peninsula. This coincided with the construction of hundreds of kofun burial mounds, which likely
were tombs for prominent warriors. Many of the kofun remain and some are open to the public.

After Japan and its allies” ambitions on the Korean Peninsula were ended by Tang China and
the Korean kingdom of Silla in the mid-600s, Tsushima and Iki became key nodes in a network of forts
and beacons established to guard against an invasion from the continent. Kaneda Fort on Tsushima
was the first line of defense in this network, while the Takenotsuji mountain on Iki is thought to have
been the site of a smoke beacon used to
send warnings of impending foreign
threats to Kyushu.

Despite the political tension, the
seventh century was also a time of
active peaceful exchange. From 630
onward, Japan sent regular diplomatic
and trade embassies to the Tang
dynasty in an effort to learn from

Chinese culture and civilization. These




delegations initially traveled via Iki and Tsushima, but from the year 702 adopted the shorter but more
dangerous route from Goto directly across the East China Sea. There are numerous sites associated with
the envoys throughout the Goto islands, including the windswept Mimiraku Peninsula from which many
of their ships departed.

Exchange across the Tsushima Strait took many forms in the medieval period and during the
conflict-ridden Sengoku period (1467—1568). Merchants and pirates from the border islands traded and
pillaged along the Korean and Chinese coasts, and some accumulated considerable profits along with a
measure of political independence. Namaike Fort on Iki was built by one particularly successful opera-
tive, while the Stone pagodas of Hinoshima in the Goto Islands serve as monuments to seafarers whose
names have been lost to history.

In the 1590s, the warlord Toyotomi Hideyoshi (1537-1598) twice launched expeditions to
conquer China via Iki, Tsushima, and the Korean Peninsula. Katsumoto Castle on Iki and Shimizuyama
Castle on Tsushima were built as footholds for these ultimately unsuccessful attempts, which temporarily
severed relations between the border islands and Korea.

Ties were reestablished in the early 1600s as a result of the efforts of the So family, the lords of
Tsushima. Throughout the Edo period (1603—1867), the So held a monopoly on Japanese trade with
Joseon Korea, a lucrative privilege granted in return for managing diplomatic relations between the
kingdom and the Tokugawa shogunate. The Korean missions to Tokugawa Japan all passed through
Tsushima, where sites such as the So mausoleum at Banshoin Temple and the Ofunae dry dock stand as
testament to the prosperity brought about by the trade with Korea.

These and many other sites, customs, and artifacts on Iki, Tsushima, and Goto that convey the

islands’ history of exchange with continental Asia have collectively been designated a Japan Heritage Site
under the title “The Border Islands Iki, Tsushima, and Goto—The Ancient Bridge to the Continent.”
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oHarunotsuji Site

Harunotsuji was the capital of the kingdom of Iki from around 200 BCE to 350 CE. The settlement flourished as a
mercantile hub where the people of Iki traded goods and information with traders and travelers from the Korean
Peninsula, China, and mainland Japan.

Harunotsuji was built on the largest plain on the island, an inhospitable place battered by strong winds
throughout the winter. A large wharf on the Hatahoko River functioned as the gateway to the settlement and was
accessible only by small boats that had to travel upstream to their destination from the nearest bay, where larger
vessels anchored. These features suggest that the site of the capital was chosen for strategic purposes, and its
population of traders and farmers is thought to have been brought in for political reasons.

Visitors approaching Harunotsuji from the wharf would first pass over two—in some places three—moats
that encircled the town. They would proceed past dwellings built in shallow pits, elevated storehouses, and watch-
towers on their way uphill toward the center of the settlement. The highest point was occupied by a temple complex,
where shamans conferred with the deities of the sky to predict the future. The gates to the temple, marking the border
between the sacred and secular worlds, were decorated with figurines of birds (fori),
considered messengers of the gods. Some theorize that this type of gateway is the
origin of the Shinto torii gate.

The significance of Harunotsuji is thought to have declined in the
mid-fourth century, perhaps as a result of changes in trade routes and the kingdom of
Iki being absorbed by forces from mainland Japan. The foundations of some 300
structures have been discovered at the site, and 17 buildings from the first to third
centuries have been reconstructed. Artifacts unearthed from the site, including
Korean pottery, Chinese coins, a copper weight used in trading, and a stone carved
into the shape of a human face, are on display at the adjacent Ikikoku Museum.
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Ikikoku Museum

The exhibits in the Ikikoku Museum explain the history of the vibrant ties between Iki and mainland Asia
from around 200 BCE until the seventh century. During this period, the island was first a self-governing
kingdom with Harunotsuji as its capital and then became a key foothold for the Yamato court’s ambitions
on the Korean Peninsula.

The museum building stands on a hill overlooking the site of the ancient settlement of Harunot-
suji. It was designed by Kurokawa Kisho (1934-2007) to be a natural extension of the historic site, which
is visible in its entirety from the museum’s rooftop terrace and observation tower.

The permanent exhibition begins with an immersive display highlighting the text of the Book of
Wei, part of the third-century Chinese historical text Records of the Three Kingdoms. This chronicle
contains the first written mention of Iki, in the form of an account of a Chinese envoy’s journey to the
Japanese islands. The introductory section is followed by a video explanation of life in ancient Iki and
Harunotsuji; the settlement site can be viewed from the theater room after the film.

From the theater room, a corridor lined with displays focusing on specific items excavated from
the Harunotsuji site and from kofun burial mounds throughout Iki leads down toward the main exhibition
space. Many of the items displayed in the corridor can be handled by visitors, and they are placed on low
shelves so that they are easy for children to view.

The main exhibition centers on a diorama of life in Harunotsuji, which features figures whose
facial features are modeled on those of present-day Iki residents. The scenes depicted include diving for
shellfish, the building of pit dwellings, and rituals conducted at the king’s court. There is a full-sized
reproduction of a semi-composite boat, which is a dugout with vertically attached planking on each side
for protection against waves. The traders of Iki traveled to the Korean Peninsula and Kyushu in such
boats to trade their seafood and farm produce for tools, pottery, and weapons.

The museum hosts four or five special exhibitions annually. Part of the storage facility can be
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viewed through a giant picture window, and
visitors can peek into a hall where museum
staff clean and restore artifacts. The Nagasaki
Prefectural Archaeological Center is in the
same building.
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Kofun Burial Mounds on IKi

The landscape of Iki is dotted with kofun burial mounds. These tombs consist of a burial chamber sealed
with a giant boulder, contained within a round or keyhole-shaped mound of earth. Some 280 kofun were
built on the island, mainly between the second half of the sixth century and the early seventh century. The
kofun on Iki are notable for their size as well as their number. The largest of them rival the grand tombs of
the Yamato kings who ruled the Japanese archipelago at that time, and items of great value have been
discovered inside.

The kofun testify to the strategic importance of Iki during the period in which the kofun were
built. From the sixth to the seventh century, the Yamato court and its allies on the Korean Peninsula
fought against the Korean kingdom of Silla, and Iki is likely to have functioned as a base from which
manpower and supplies could be sent to the front. The powerful figures buried in the kofun may have
been high-ranking Yamato warriors, either local chieftains or commanders dispatched from mainland
Japan. As the building of sizable kofun required a substantial labor force, their presence indicates a large
population. Several of the largest kofun were constructed on high ground facing the Korean Peninsula,
possibly in order to scare off prospective intruders approaching from the sea.

Some of the kofun on Iki remained in use as tombs for centuries after their construction. Succes-
sive generations of the same family were buried in them, unlike elsewhere in Japan, where kofun were
usually sealed after the initial interment and their entrance carefully concealed. Although the tombs’
continued use made them relatively easy targets for grave robbers, some of the valuable artifacts buried
with the deceased have been recovered and are on display at the Ikikoku Museum. Six of the largest
kofun on Iki have been designated a National Historic Site, and two of these—the Kakegi and Sasazuka

kofun—are open to the public.
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Kofun Artifacts

Many of the artifacts discovered in the kofun burial mounds on Iki reflect the island’s strong ties with
mainland Japan, the Korean Peninsula, and China in the sixth and seventh centuries.

The largest kofun are thought to have been built for high-ranking warriors who fought for the
Yamato government, which dominated the Japanese archipelago at the time. Swords, metal arrowheads,
and saddlery make up a significant share of the finds. The most notable is a turtle-shaped piece of
saddlery made of gilt bronze that was possibly used to decorate a horse’s forehead, found in the Sasazuka
kofun. Items with similar motifs have been discovered near the Yamato capital in what is now Nara
Prefecture, suggesting a connection with the centralized state. Another notable artifact that could have
belonged to a Yamato commander is a gilt-bronze sword pommel decorated with the likeness of a #0-0
(fenghuang), the mythological East Asian phoenix. The pommel was unearthed from the Soroku kofun,
one of the largest and most centrally located kofun on Iki.

Artifacts such as a painted ceramic cup from the Chinese state of Northern Qi (550—577) and an
ornate incense bowl from the Korean kingdom of Silla, both discovered in the Soroku kofun, were items
of enormous value at the time. They are likely to have only been possessed by a king or chieftain with
influence over trade with the continent. The presence of items from Silla, an enemy of the Yamato,
suggests that the people of Iki may have developed commercial relations of their own with the Korean
kingdom and may have acted as intermediaries between Silla and the Yamato court.
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© Site of Katsumoto Castle

The hilltop Katsumoto Castle was a hastily built and short-lived citadel intended for use by the warlord
Toyotomi Hideyoshi (1537-1598) during an invasion of the Korean Peninsula. Having completed the
unification of Japan under his rule, the ambitious Hideyoshi next set his sights on conquering Ming China
by way of Korea. The expedition was to invade Korea via Iki and Tsushima, and Hideyoshi ordered his
lieutenants to construct bridgeheads on the islands for a force of 150,000. Each of these bases, including
the one in Katsumoto on the northern edge of ki, was to include a castle from which Hideyoshi could
personally oversee the campaign.

Hideyoshi’s generals built Katsumoto Castle in only four months in 1591. The fortress centered
on an oval area measuring 90 by 40 meters that was 80 meters above sea level, overlooking a cove where
the expeditionary force would anchor its ships before crossing to Tsushima. Hideyoshi’s poor health
prevented him from traveling, and the invasion ended in failure. In the early 1600s, the Tokugawa
shogunate restored diplomatic relations with Korea and had Hideyoshi’s castles on Iki and Tsushima
decommissioned as a gesture of peace.

The site of Katsumoto Castle is now a park with a view over the village and port of the same
name. All that is left of the castle today are the entrance and some of the ramparts that surrounded the
main keep. The remaining ramparts are largely intact except for the corners, where watchtowers would
have stood. Removing the corner stones was an often-employed way of making a castle defensively
useless without having to demolish the entire structure.
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O Takenotsuji

At 213 meters, Takenotsuji is the highest point on the largely flat Iki. The island’s numerous small bays,
forested hills, and the Fukaetabaru plain—the site of the ancient settlement of Harunotsuji—are all visible
from the summit. Both the island of Tsushima and mainland Kyushu come into view on clear days.

Takenotsuji has been strategically important throughout history for the unimpeded vista from its
top. It is thought to have been the location of an ancient smoke beacon, part of a network established in
the seventh century to send signals warning of impending foreign threats from Tsushima to Iki and on to
Kyushu. During the Edo period (1603—1867), when the Tokugawa shogunate strictly regulated all contact
with foreign countries, the peak was used to monitor ships passing through nearby waters.

There is now a road to the top of Takenotsuji, and the lookout on the summit is easy to reach,

including by wheelchair. .
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@Uchime Bay

In ancient times, traders traveling between Iki and Tsushima, the Korean Peninsula, and Kyushu anchored
their boats in Uchime Bay on the eastern side of Iki before proceeding on to the capital at Harunotsuji.
Upon arrival in the bay, the seafarers had to transfer their goods to smaller vessels capable of navigating
the shallow Hatahoko River. They then rowed upriver for 1.5 kilometers to the docks of Harunotsuji,
which flourished as the capital of the kingdom of Iki from around 200 BCE to 350 CE.

The main place of interest in the bay today is Kojima Shrine, where deities associated with the
sea and fishing are enshrined. It is located on a small island reachable via a sandbank that emerges from
the sea at low tide or in a traditional-style rowboat when the tide is in.

@ W75

EILDH=DH 5 IHEEIL, i ¢ A BRI B, SN DRI AT 3K T2 R A3, s
HIETDH B R OIIE O CHNAR P BTS¢ T3 TH 2, I FIFE Lo, v 'P%%JH{PS@E
LTE3 NIOI R PR AR 2 OO 53 T15%mr 0 Tl &l

VIACTCRT2004F- 2> G3504E HE CREIRE D ERBELTHRAIZEIATDH 2,




Karakami Site

The hilltop village of Karakami in northwestern Iki, near Katanae Bay, was one of the largest settlements
on the island around the beginning of the common era. Its people are thought to have subsisted on fishing,
hunting, and ironworking.

Archaeological finds such as pieces of scrap iron and the remains of a furnace suggest that the
Karakami villagers may have played an intermediary role in the ancient iron trade between the Korean
Peninsula and mainland Japan. They are thought to have acquired iron goods from Korea, where the
technology required to produce the metal was developed earlier than in Japan, and modified or reinforced
them for sale in Kyushu and elsewhere in Japan. Karakami’s connection with Korea is evidenced by the
large quantity of earthenware from the peninsula discovered at the village site.

In addition to introducing advanced ironmaking techniques to Japan, the village may have played
a role in bringing a now familiar pet animal to the archipelago: the oldest known bones of a domesticated

cat found in Japan were unearthed in Karakami.
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Site of Namaike Fort

In the tumultuous mid-sixteenth century, when rival warlords fought for control throughout Japan,
a group of samurai merchants and pirates known as the Matsuura Band operated out of northwest-
ern Kyushu, including the islands of Iki and Goto. They traded and raided along the Korean coast
and did business in mainland Japan, accumulating considerable profits along with a measure of
political independence.

One of the most influential Matsuura operatives was the Iki-based Minamoto no Ichi, who
is thought to have built the hilltop Namaike Fort in the central part of the island. The stronghold
was designed as a refuge of last resort, and was probably not manned at all times. Its main com-
pound, a flattened 150-by-100-meter area, was protected by three layers of earthworks and a
double dry moat. Access to the compound was via four narrow earthen bridges over the moat, one
on each side, built in plain sight to draw enemies into a tight space where they would be easy to
target from above.

The moat and earthen bridges remain almost entirely intact today; parts of the fort’s walls
can also be made out around the top of the hill. The fort site is easily accessible on foot from a
nearby parking lot.
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Shrines and Kagura on Iki

Ancient sites of worship associated with the deities of the sea, navigation, and warfare can be found throughout
Iki, reflecting both the importance of the ocean in the local people’s livelihood and the island’s historical position
on the front lines of contact with foreign powers. Some two dozen of the more than 100 shrines on Iki are
mentioned in the tenth-century Engishiki, a compilation of regulations and procedures produced by the imperial
court that also listed all the significant shrines in Japan at the time. That so many religious sites on such a small
island were included in this important compilation suggests that the Yamato court considered Iki a place of
strategic importance.

These shrines have for centuries served as venues for kagura, an ancient performance combining dance
and music that is generally presented around the autumn harvest to thank the gods for a bountiful crop. Different
regions have their own variations of kagura, and the tradition on Iki is one of the most distinctive. Iki kagura is
highly ceremonial, with few of the entertainment elements seen in some other areas. Only Shinto priests and their
family members are allowed to act out the around 35 stories passed down orally through the generations at shrines
on the island. In these plays, which range from solemn reenactments of scenes from the creation myths of Japan
to acrobatic displays that include elements of sumo wrestling and juggling, performers are limited to a space of
two tatami mats.

Kagura on Iki is performed to welcome
and entertain deities, and, despite most performanc-
es being held in autumn and winter, was not
traditionally associated with any specific occasion
or time of the year. Two significant performances
are open to the public. The five-hour Daidaikagura
is held in August at Tsutsuki Beach, whereas the
Daidaikagura, which consists of around 30 plays
and goes on for up to nine hours, takes place at
Sumiyoshi Shrine in December.
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® Site of Kaneda Fort

Tsushima Island’s Kaneda Fort was a sprawling mountaintop stronghold built by the Yamato government
in the late seventh century as part of a network of fortifications established to protect Japan from an
expected invasion by Tang China and the kingdom of Silla on the Korean Peninsula. Long sections of the
fort’s stone walls, which are up to 6 meters high, remain on the slopes of the 276-meter Mt. Jo at the
southern end of Aso Bay in central Tsushima. The Korean Peninsula is visible from the summit on clear
days.

The Yamato court feared an imminent attack from mainland Asia after the year 663, when the
Tang—Silla alliance subjugated the Korean kingdom of Baekje, a longtime Yamato ally, leaving Japan
alone in East Asia to stand against the might of the Tang. Baekje officers and engineers who had fled
across the Sea of Japan were recruited to construct Korean-style forts on the border islands, in Kyushu,
and along the shores of the Seto Inland Sea—the likely route the enemy would take toward the capital of
Asuka in present-day Nara Prefecture.

Kaneda Fort was the first line of defense in this network. The sheer cliffs of Mt. Jo made secur-
ing the fort’s western side easy, while high stone walls were built on the eastern side and up around the
peak to repel intruders. Entrance to the fort was from the south through several gates that led to a
flattened section on the eastern hillside. The guards stationed at the fort are thought to have lived in this
section and patrolled the walls and summit in shifts.

The Tang—Silla alliance fell apart before any invasion of Japan could be carried out, and Kaneda
Fort lost its significance. The site was converted into a modern military facility in 1901, when Imperial
Japanese Army engineers built a road to the summit and installed a cannon battery on it. The 2.4-kilome-
ter hiking trail to the peak uses this road, passing several sections of the ancient stone walls along the
way. The climb takes around an hour in favorable weather.
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®Sacred Red Rice of Tsutsu

The tradition of venerating rice, practiced in the village of Tsutsu in southern Tsushima, is perhaps the
oldest extant religious ritual on the island. It involves seeking divine protection and expressing gratitude
by hanging a bale of rice believed to be imbued with the spirit of a deity from the ceiling of one of the
houses in the village every year. The custom signifies an ancient connection with mainland Asia, as the
faintly reddish variety of rice used is thought to have been brought to Tsushima from China around the
beginning of the Common Era.

Every summer, the people of Tsutsu grow rice for the ritual on a sacred field where no fertilizer
considered unclean, such as animal or human excrement, may be used. On the tenth day of the first
month of the lunar calendar—usually sometime in February—the villagers would gather at the house
where the previous year’s sacred rice was hanging from the ceiling. They would take down the bale, eat
some of its contents, and fill a new bale with the rice harvested the previous autumn. The bundle would
be passed on to the next family in line and suspended from their ceiling until the next year’s ritual. Now,

however, as only one household in Tsutsu continues the tradition, the bale is kept in the same house and
refilled annually.
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® Buddha Statues of Kurose

Tsushima’s long and complex relationship with Korea is exemplified by two bronze statues
enshrined in a modest hall in the fishing village of Kurose in the innermost cove of Aso Bay.

One of these is a likeness of a Buddha, perhaps Amida, believed to have been cast in the
Korean kingdom of Silla in the eighth century. At 46 centimeters tall, it is thought to be the
largest Silla-made statue of its period, and has been designated an Important Cultural Property.
The statue’s body and pedestal show significant burn damage. How the invaluable artwork ended
up in Kurose is not known, but local people have worshiped the statue for centuries as a protec-
tor of childbirth.

The other statue, which depicts a bodhisattva, is believed to have been made in Korea in
the late fourteenth century. It has also been badly burned, and parts of the body and base appear
to have melted. Locally, this statue was traditionally considered to be male and the Silla Buddha
female.

The hall housing the statues is kept locked, but visits can be arranged by contacting the
city of Tsushima.
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©Banshoin Temple and the Tombs of the So Family

The So family were lords of Tsushima from the thirteenth century until the late nineteenth century, and
Banshoin is their ancestral temple. The temple is located in the shadow of Mt. Shimizu on the western
edge of the town of Izuhara and includes a sprawling hillside mausoleum containing the graves of the So
family from 1615 onward. In that year, So Yoshinari (1604—1657) founded the temple in memory of his
father Yoshitoshi (1568—1615), naming it Banshoin after Yoshitoshi’s posthumous honorary name.
Adjacent to the temple was Kaneishi Castle, the So family’s stronghold and main residence.

Banshoin is entered via a path that passes by the temple’s red main gate, flanked by a pair of
statues of Nio guardian kings believed to ward off evil and protect the temple from harm. The gate is the
only original structure remaining on the grounds; the other buildings were lost to fire and subsequently
rebuilt.

Beyond the gate is the main hall, which holds a set of three bronze altar decorations: a candle-
stick with a crane-and-turtle motif, a lion-shaped censer, and a flower vase. These items were gifts from
the king of Korea, sent as an expression of condolences for the death of a head of the So family. The
Korean court maintained close ties with the So, who were tasked with managing diplomatic relations
between the kingdom and the Tokugawa shogunate and were granted a trade monopoly with Korea
throughout the Edo period (1603—1867). Banshoin used to house many more such metal implements, but
the others were requisitioned and melted down for military use during World War II.

From the main hall, a 132-step stone staircase leads to the So family mausoleum. Its uppermost
section, the Kami-Otamaya, is overshadowed by three giant cedar trees; it contains the tombs of the So
lords and those of their wives and adult children. The tombs’ sizes vary according to the prominence and
wealth of the Tsushima domain at the time. So Yoshinari’s tombstone and that of his successor Yoshizane
(1639-1702) are the largest, reflecting the prosperity of Tsushima during the latter half of the seventeenth
century when trade with Korea flourished. On the cemetery’s lower levels are the tombs of other family
members, including concubines and children who died young.
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®Site of Shimizuyama Castle

Shimizuyama Castle was a long, narrow stronghold built in the late sixteenth century along the ridge of
Mt. Shimizu above what is now the town of Izuhara. The fortress was likely intended to complement the
defenses of Kaneishi Castle at the foot of the mountain in the event of a visit by the warlord Toyotomi
Hideyoshi (1537—-1598), who was planning to invade the Korean Peninsula at the time.

By the early 1590s, Hideyoshi had defeated all his domestic rivals and unified Japan, after which
he planned the conquest of Ming China by way of Korea. The invasion forces were to depart from Iki and
Tsushima, and Hideyoshi ordered his lieutenants to establish footholds on the islands to accommodate a
force of 150,000. Each of these bases was to include a castle from which Hideyoshi could personally
oversee the campaign. In [zuhara that would have been Kaneishi Castle, the stronghold of the So family,
administrators of Tsushima.

Shimizuyama Castle was built to overlook Kaneishi Castle. It consisted of three enclosures built
on flattened terraces—two along the mountain’s ridge and one on the 206-meter-high summit—and a
connecting corridor that spanned a length of 500 meters. The terraces were reinforced with stone
ramparts. The first and third enclosures have been relatively well preserved, and the ruins of their entranc-
es and walls are clearly visible on the mountain. Both are accessible via a hiking trail that ascends to the
third enclosure and follows the ridge from there. The site of the third enclosure (sannomaru), around 100
meters above sea level, provides a view over the modern town and port of Izuhara.
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® Site of Kaneishi Castle and Garden

Kaneishi Castle was the main residence of the So family, the daimyo lords of Tsushima, from its
establishment in 1528 until the late seventeenth century. The compound was initially relatively lightly
fortified, but was turned into a castle with walls and watchtowers in the 1660s. The enlargement
coincided with the rebuilding of the castle town of Izuhara after a destructive fire and was financed by
profits earned from the flourishing trade between Tsushima and Joseon Korea.

Despite its expansion, Kaneishi Castle proved insufficient for the So family, and they moved
their residence to the larger and grander Sajikihara Castle north of the town in 1678. The relocation may
have been caused by the family’s diplomatic duties, foremost among which was the welcoming of
regular embassies from Korea. These delegations, which were dispatched to the shogunate in Edo
(modern Tokyo) via Tsushima, could consist of more than 450 participants. The So were tasked with
accommodating the delegates on Tsushima and accompanying them on the journey to Edo.

The So family retained Kaneishi Castle as a secondary residence, and in the 1690s added a
small garden centered on a pond in the shape of the Chinese character kokoro (), which means
“mind” or “heart.” The castle was last used for official purposes in 1811, when it served as a guest
house for the shogun’s representatives during the final Joseon mission to Japan. That embassy did not
travel any further than Tsushima as a cost-saving measure agreed between the two parties.

Some of the original walls of Kaneishi Castle remain on the site, which is now occupied by the
Tsushima Museum, and the main gate and watchtower have been reconstructed. The garden had been
built over, but it was restored in the 1990s and is open to the public.
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@Korean Missions to Tokugawa Japan

Strong political and commercial ties have linked the Korean Peninsula and Japan since ancient times, but
it was during the Joseon period of Korean history (1392—1897) that these relations were formalized. To
cultivate amity and trade, the king of Joseon regularly sent official embassies to the warrior-led regimes
of Japan, and interacted even more frequently with the So family, who governed Tsushima. All these ties
were severed by the Japanese invasions of Korea in the 1590s, which were directed by the warlord
Toyotomi Hideyoshi (1537—1598), and in which the So were also forced to take part.

Tsushima’s economy has always been heavily dependent on foreign trade, and the cessation of
relations with the Korean Peninsula had a devastating impact on the island. Immediately after Hideyoshi’s
invasions ended in failure, the So family sought to restore ties with Joseon. After Hideyoshi died and the
Tokugawa shogunate was established in 1603, they even forged official correspondence and seals to
smooth over differences of opinion between the Joseon court and the new warrior-led regime.

The So efforts were rewarded, and in 1607 Joseon reinstated regular missions to Japan. The
Korean kingdom dispatched a total of 12 embassies to the Tokugawa, usually on the occasion of shogunal
succession. These delegations all traveled via Tsushima, and the So family was charged with the practical
arrangements. As a cost-saving measure, the final mission in 1811 conducted all official business on the
island instead of making the journey to Edo (present-day Tokyo). Joseon was the only foreign power with
which the Tokugawa shogunate maintained regular diplomatic relations.

The splendor of the embassies, some of which consisted of nearly 500 participants, was recorded
in two picture scrolls produced by the So family painters. The older of the pair, thought to date to the
seventeenth century, depicts a Korean mission on its way to Edo, accompanied by dignitaries and guards
from the Tsushima domain. The other scroll illustrates the embassy of 1811 parading down the main
street in the So castle town of [zuhara. Reproductions and digital versions of the artworks are on display
at the Tsushima Museum and the nearby Tsushima Chosen Tsushinshi History Museum. A reenactment of
a Korean mission to the Tokugawa is held in Izuhara every August during the Minato Matsuri festival.

TRERTTNN TR
Enn R ERELECTRRN llll
L 1

@ 3 ek 58 {5 A

I LHAR LD I3 <0 GBUR Y. B MIs iR v
FEN DS D3 Do 72 H5, I F IR (1392~1897) 122 3L
IRGOBRIZIVIER L b DIc ko7, WA E T3 AT L
BREPIRD 5729 HARO R L BOE 1< e M @i 2349,
KB PHIR LTI E R LIS R TR L7z, Lo L. 1590
SERITE R T (1537-1598) DHIEEH EAZIFEL . =KD T
USSR S 2B Lk 72729 ZOMRIBbI o e,

A OREFIL LS LR B Ic KSR LT, ¢
FBLORGEH @2 T2 03, BRI T8, % 5.2 72,
75 75 DARME 25 F Iz i oo T2 TR FE S L D AR ]
DTz, T DIEE N R psik s, FFITHE
TRILH OB L OHE 2T 27: 010, A 3GEERH
SR hiE TV DT,

DI LB ORER WX 16074E 12 2 119 2 5 9
PR ST IR AE) N 12 D AE G 2 9RAE L 7205, 2
BFEICHERAROBIIT b, 2R ODEH I3 ~<T
MEBEPRB L BRRSEB ML L7, 181ED B DM
HiENE B RO 72D JLF 2T A T ETT~TD
AR IR LT W P81 RS 5% W D A4 52 B 1R 7 A
FLCwicfE—DETH- 72,

DIBET 2TV, ) —IRI. 181 14E DI 2552 D
BRI (BAEDBER) 2 ) BT 2 /w712 D Th 2. 2h
O DA B T iy ot FE R sl A5 1 R o B OB
TIZNVRE IR LT W5, AES HIZ R TIT b s [#i o
] CI3 SR EMEPHE LA~V FosBIf a2,

500 AL 23BN L 7oA 8 B D ZE 3 313 E K DA A3
HfEL 722t DB TRB A Twb, —2013 17 DY
DT, W BEHS A EHEORE RCHEE P2 T I




24

®Tsushima Museum

The Tsushima Museum in Izuhara offers an overview of the island’s history from the Jomon period
(10,000-300 BCE) to contemporary times. Exhibits focus particularly on the process and results of
interaction between Tsushima and mainland Asia, covering themes such as ancient trade, conflict and
reconciliation, and diplomacy between Japan and Korea during the Edo period (1603—-1867).

The chronological permanent exhibition begins with a brief introductory section centered on a
late seventeenth-century map of the island. This is followed by the Ancient Times room. Its distinctive
display cases allow visitors to study artifacts such as earthenware fragments, arrowheads, axe blades,
and decorative glass beads from all sides. Some reproductions of the items can be touched, including
ceremonial bronze spearheads (hoko) thought to have been used in rituals in the first and second
centuries.

Highlighted in the Feudal Japan and Edo Period rooms are artifacts and events from the
fourteenth century up until 1867. Exhibits encompass Korean pottery acquired by Tsushima’s traders,
documents describing the island’s commercial relations, and the official seals and correspondence
forged by the So family, the daimyo lords of Tsushima. These fakes were produced for the purpose of
reestablishing trade and diplomatic ties between the Tokugawa shogunate and Joseon Korea in the early
1600s.

On the second floor of the museum building is the Nagasaki Prefectural Research Center for
the History of Tsushima. The Center is charged with preserving, restoring, and conducting research into
documents from the official library of the So family, who were noted for their meticulous recordkeep-
ing. The trove of some 80,000 items covers the entire Edo period and includes the So Mainichiki, a
diary-like record of events on Tsushima kept by the domain’s scriveners that provides historians with a
window onto centuries of life on the island.
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© Ofunae Dry Dock Site

The economy of Tsushima flourished in the seventeenth century, when the So family that governed the
island held a monopoly on trade between Japan and Joseon Korea. The So procured tropical products
such as spices and sappanwood in Nagasaki for export to Korea, where they bought mainly silk thread,
cotton, and medicinal roots to be sold in Kyoto and Osaka.

Profits earned from this exchange were used by the So to build, among other things, the Ofunae
dry dock on the mouth of the Kuta River, south of the castle town of Izuhara. Set in an artificial cove and
completed in 1663, Ofunae encompassed five docks that were used for the repair and maintenance of the
trading vessels that ferried goods between Tsushima and the So settlement in the city of Busan. Ships
used by So officials to travel to Edo (now Tokyo) and Osaka were also kept at Ofunae. Vessels could be
moved in and out of the docks at high tide, while repairs were conducted mainly at low tide.

The stone embankments of four of the five docks remain at the Ofunae site.

© B HRTLER

A B ORI THAT, B2 B L CWICE R HE S %
R LTI ZAHIZBERL 72, KR THREECERAL ED B
B IRE LTI L BT Ci F s Ak o it 3R
Wt E AU THERC AR TR 21wz,

72 BT ATO ANT# I L7250DFy 7 T L
Z L OFNEE R K B DA OIS FER B b, SHR
DBIFRE LR LRI 2O b 2 2 THRE - 53
NIz, T RSO A Y 5T & Fc TN B

PAE R oY (VAN
ZORPETHIRZE R Lz, F RGBT - RO A
FIR N s AT ORR IR 2 3 35 0 E L T2, 1663412 52 B L BIHTIZIZ5DDIED I D40 DAREDTFHINT VB,




26

@Waniura

Less than 50 kilometers of sea separate the village of Waniura on the northern tip of Tsushima from the
Korean city of Busan. Due to this proximity, Waniura has always been at the front line of both human
and natural interactions between Tsushima and mainland Asia.

The many coves in the vicinity historically served as bases for traders and pirates operating
along the Korean coast, and in return these settlements were occasionally targeted by raiders from the
peninsula. Waniura was the final staging ground for the 1592 invasion of Korea by the warlord Toyoto-
mi Hideyoshi (1537-1598), whose generals led a force of 100,000 across the strait. And from the
fifteenth to the nineteenth century, envoys sent by the king of Korea to the shogunal rulers of Japan
would travel from Busan to the Waniura area before sailing south along the island’s east coast to the

castle town of Izuhara.

Several plant and animal species on Tsushima originate from the Korean Peninsula. Two of the
most noteworthy of these are the Tsushima leopard cat, an endangered subspecies of the continental

leopard cat that is endemic to the island, and the Chinese fringetree (Chionanthus retusus), a shrub with

featherlike white flower heads that blooms throughout the hills around Waniura in early May and
attracts many flower watchers during the Golden Week of national holidays.
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@ Stone Pagodas of Hinoshima

More than 70 stone pagodas in a variety of shapes and sizes dot the barren landscape on a projecting
sandspit off the southern end of the small island of Hinoshima, next to Wakamatsu Island. Formerly
covered by forest, the site was once a secluded cemetery where medieval traders and seafarers buried
their dead, established monuments for comrades lost at sea, and even built memorials to themselves in
anticipation of the same fate.

Most of the pagodas were erected between the late 1300s and the 1400s, when mariners from
Goto actively engaged in trade and piracy along the coasts of the Korean Peninsula and China. These
seafarers often sold their exotic wares to the nobility and other wealthy customers in Kyoto.

Goods bound for Kyoto were unloaded either in Wakasa Bay on the Sea of Japan coast or near
present-day Osaka and Kobe. Many of the pagodas on Hinoshima are made of types of stone found only
in these areas, suggesting that the stones likely arrived on the island as ballast loaded into trading ships
for the journey back to Goto.

Judging from their shape and structure, some of the monuments are thought to have been
acquired in one piece in mainland Japan and brought to Hinoshima, rather than being assembled on site.
One common style of pagoda is the gorinto, a five-part structure in which each differently shaped part
symbolizes one of the five elements that in Buddhism constitute the cosmos. The shapes and their
corresponding elements are a cube for earth, a sphere for water, a pyramid for fire, a hemisphere for air,
and a jewel for void. Another frequently seen type is the hokyo-into, a tower-like construction crowned by
a stepped pyramid with a pointed finial on top.
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2Worship of Mt. Sanno

Mt. Sanno on Nakadori Island, the northernmost of the main Goto islands, has been considered sacred
since distant antiquity. Towering cliffs and caves on the mountain’s slopes were thought to be the
domain of the divine. Devotees conducted rituals in these places, and some would spend extended
periods of time on the mountain to practice spiritual discipline.

At some point the mountain came to be associated with the syncretic Sanno faith that draws on
the teachings of the Buddhist priest Saicho (767—822), the founder of the Tendai school of Buddhism.
The Tendai school is located on Mt. Hiei near Kyoto, and the Sanno faith centers on the worship of that
mountain. The deities of Mt. Hiei are considered guardians of Tendai and manifestations of various
buddhas and bodhisattvas. It is not clear how the Sanno doctrine arrived on Nakadori Island, but some
suggest that it may have been brought over by medieval traders or priests who traveled between central
Japan and China via Goto.

The locations of several ancient and medieval worship sites on Mt. Sanno have been deter-
mined, including the Ninomiya cave, in which was found 17 bronze mirrors dating from the second half
of the thirteenth century to the eighteenth century. Such mirrors were considered mystical instruments
of prayer that could be used to capture souls, and are known to have been left by devotees in places of
religious significance.

Four Shinto shrines remain on Mt. Sanno today. Near the start of the trail going to the peak is a
“remote shrine” (yohaijo) where devotees can pray to the mountain’s deities from afar. From there, a
steep path leads past Ichinomiya Shrine and the Ninomiya cave toward the 439-meter summit, which
has two more shrines. A lookout on the peak provides views over the entire Goto island chain.
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& Mimiraku Peninsula

The Mimiraku Peninsula on the northwestern end of Fukue Island, the outermost of Goto’s main islands,
was the final staging ground for many of the Japanese envoys who traveled to Tang China between the
eighth and ninth centuries. From Mimiraku they set out on a treacherous journey directly westward across
the East China Sea—a voyage from which only around half of those who departed would return alive.
Trees and bushes on the grassy peninsula grow almost horizontally due to the storm winds that blow in
from the sea and across the landscape in winter, when Mimiraku can feel like a bleak and unforgiving
place.

The peninsula’s often grim weather and its location at the western edge of the Japanese archipel-
ago, where the envoys to China bid farewell to their native land, inspired its name, a reference to the end
of the world. In a poem included in the tenth-century Kagero nikki (The Mayfly Diary; published in
translation as The Gossamer Years), the author prays to one day meet her dead mother at mimiraku, a
place between the mortal world and the afterlife.
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Myojoin Temple

According to local legend, the temple of Myojoin on the outskirts of what is now the town of Fukue on
Fukue Island was originally a guest house for the Japanese envoys who traveled to Tang China via the
Goto Islands between the eighth and ninth centuries. The temple’s copper statue of Yakushi, the Buddha
of medicine and healing, which one of the emissaries may have brought to the island as an amulet for
protections on the dangerous journey across the sea, is thought to date to this time. Perhaps the most
famous of the envoys, the Buddhist priest Kukai (774—-835), is believed to have named the temple upon
his return from China in 806. As the story goes, Kukai prayed that the knowledge he had acquired
would benefit Japan and its people. A bright star appeared in the sky the next morning to signify that his
wish would be granted, and Kukai named the site of his prayer Myojoan (“hermitage of the shining
star”), which later became Myojoin.

From the fourteenth century onward, the Goto family that governed the islands prayed at
Myojoin and made donations to the temple. The family funded the repainting of the interiors in the main
hall in the seventeenth century, when an artist of the famous Kano school was commissioned to decorate
the ceiling with 121 paintings of plants and birds. The ceiling’s four corners bear images of tennyo,
celestial beings that lead the dead to paradise. Depicted near the center of the room’s outer section,
directly above the place where the daimyo lord of Goto would sit in prayer, is a s0-o0, a mythical bird
that in East Asian mythology brings tidings of a king’s birth and is considered a symbol of power.
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Daihoji Temple

For centuries, a significant proportion of travelers journeying between China and Japan would pass
through the Tamanoura area in southwestern Goto, at the western end of the Japanese archipelago. There
are many reminders of these voyages on the seaside grounds of Daihoji, a Shingon Buddhist temple
thought to have been established in the eighth century.

According to legend, the priest Kukai (774—835) visited Daihoji in 806 upon his return from
China, where he had studied esoteric Buddhism. The teachings he absorbed in China, which he is said to
have preached at Daihoji, would later lead him to establish the Shingon school. As Shingon is headquar-
tered at Mt. Koya in central Japan, Daihoji styles itself “the Mt. Koya of the West” due to its fabled
association with Kukai.

On the hill behind the temple’s main hall stands a five-tiered pagoda dating back to 1369. It is
made from stone originating in what is now Fukui Prefecture, on the coast of Wakasa Bay. The stone is
thought to have been brought to Goto by the island’s traders, who regularly traveled to ports in Wakasa
Bay and elsewhere along the Sea of Japan coast to sell merchandise they had acquired in China. Local
devotees revere the pagoda as a protector of children, and it is customary to place the stump of a
newborn’s umbilical cord inside the hollow structure as an offering to the deity.

Daihoji’s bronze temple bell, cast in 1375, was also brought to the temple by a traveler: a priest
on his way to China from what is now Hyogo Prefecture in central Japan. The priest donated the bell in
the hope that this good deed would grant him divine protection for the perilous journey across the East

China Sea. His gift is now kept in a building next to the temple’s bell tower to protect it from the

elements.
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@ Japanese Missions to Tang China

Between 630 and 838, the Japanese court sent 19 official missions to Tang China, the most advanced
civilization in East Asia at the time. In addition to cultivating diplomatic and commercial ties, the
envoys on these missions, known as kentoshi, were tasked with studying Chinese government, econo-
my, culture, and religion. The knowledge they brought back to Japan formed the basis for land and
administrative reforms, the creation of population registers, and even the layout of the capital cities of
Heijokyo (in present-day Nara Prefecture) and Heiankyo (later Kyoto), which were modeled on the
Tang capital of Chang’an.

Two of the most notable Buddhist priests in Japanese history, Saicho (767—822) and Kukai
(774-835), were part of the kentoshi mission of 804. Based on their studies and experiences in China,
they established, respectively, the Tendai and Shingon schools, which had a profound influence on
Japanese philosophy and aesthetics, as well as religious thought and practice, for centuries.

Each kentoshi mission consisted of four ships carrying a delegation of several hundred diplo-
mats, scholars, artists, and traders. The embassies initially traveled by sea past Iki and Tsushima and
along the coast of the Korean Peninsula to the Shandong Peninsula, where they disembarked to begin
the overland journey to Chang’an. This route was abandoned in the 660s, and from the year 702
kentoshi ships took the shorter but far more dangerous route from the Goto Islands directly across the
East China Sea to the mouth of the Yangtze River and on to the mercantile city of Yangzhou.

Goto was the envoys’ last port of call, where they waited for favorable winds before sailing
across the open sea. There are numerous sites associated with the kentoshi, both in northern Goto
around the Aokata and Aiko areas and in the south on and near the Mimiraku Peninsula.
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Kentoshi Sites in the Northern Goto Islands

Several sites on Nakadori Island are associated with the kentoshi, the eighth- to ninth-century Japanese
envoys to Tang China. Most of the sites are in the sheltered Aokata and Aiko areas on the western side of
the island, where the delegations are thought to have stopped to resupply and wait for favorable winds
before attempting the perilous crossing over the East China Sea.

The kentoshi ships are believed to have anchored in Mikanoura (“three-day inlet”) and off
Kinpose (“silver sail cape”) on the southern side of Aokata Bay. Mifunesama, a boat-shaped rock by the
water there, may have been worshiped by the envoys and local people alike. The peak of the sacred Mt.
Sanno is visible from the site, and seafarers may have prayed to the mountain for protection from the
seas.

Kentoshi ships also moored in the innermost part of Aokata Bay, near what is now the port of
Aokata. The Tomojiri mooring stone by the port, said to have been used by the kentoshi, now stands
some distance from the water’s edge due to landfill work carried out in later centuries, but still gets
bathed by the waves at high tide. At the mouth of the stream that empties into the bay is the former site of
Hime Shrine, a sanctuary dedicated to a Shinto deity of the sea. Members of a kentoshi mission in 776
that had to turn back due to adverse weather established the shrine to pray that the winds would blow
more favorably the next year.
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@ Kentoshi Sites in the Southern Goto Islands

Fukue Island was the final staging ground for many of the kentoshi, the Japanese envoys who traveled
to Tang China between the eighth and ninth centuries. The Mimiraku Peninsula on the island’s
northwestern end is the most famous site on Fukue associated with the emissaries. For numerous
envoys, the windswept cape was the last they saw of home: only around half of the kentoshi who set out
from Japan survived the journey to China and back.

By the main road to the peninsula is the Michi no Eki Kentoshi Furusatokan, a museum that
doubles as a highway rest stop and produce market. Exhibits include historical documents and other
materials related to the kentoshi, as well as panels describing how Mimiraku was depicted in ancient
poetry.

Some envoys are thought to have made port in Shiraishi Bay to the east of Mimiraku, where a
stone to which kentoshi ships are believed to have been moored has become a place of worship. Local
people pray to the Tomozuna stone for protection at sea, and have built a makeshift shrine to house the
timeworn post.

The Myojoin and Daihoji temples on Fukue claim an association with one of the most famous
travelers from Japan to the Tang. The priest Kukai (774-835), founder of the Shingon school of
Buddhism, was part of the kentoshi mission of 804, which departed from Goto, and is thought to have
passed through the islands again upon his return in 806.

@F Tk D 1 8 B

TRILE 384T 2> COMAT Iz 22 TR IE 5 T2 % D3l
M ORBE DO MHTH o7, BOILTRIzH 3 ZIE%
DX EHEEO» VDML L TIRVE A LG TH 2,
HAR»OHFELIEEMEOI S, R EEOEBI I LT
DRFHIE T LCDBBEMHIL->TIORESLL DI
DI Rtk DS Lo T2,

FRIM»IBERIRCIZH 2 [EOIR R P5L
B IREET L B e e W TH B, 2Tk
EEEICE T s ke, IRk I N E ROk T R
WNTEARFINLEDERISNTVS,

3. EZHBORICH AR EEME IS ARELIL
SR EEMEISEELTORLSREE TR T VA,

Ao 2T EIDIRDIZET TS,

BT OB KREF 13 HAR»
ORI > T2l A R RITH D— A
@YY DHBLEZTVE, EFHED
BAAHL - 2295 (774-835)13. 8044F 1= T By
PHFELIEBEMED— B T.8064F1C
RELZBICb OB PRE LI LE 2
LhTwa,

[ ]
Busan
X

/ x5l

ShinKamigoto Town
B B BT

Goto City +
A BT R i
\lll.'ﬁ

Tsushima City

Iki City
ikl

PN

Rl '!
Nagasaki *
Pref.

o

Osaka
[ ]

O
Tokyo
[ ]



36

Wide-area Maps of the Border Islands
05 KBMAP

Site of Katsumoto Castle (P10)
i BSAIES -
Waniura (p26)

s Kofun Burial Mounds |5
@ %39 St N ik F t on Iki P8 |
- 3 N ite of Namaike or Sl AR 5
> i =
D@ < ?ﬁa\é_uiwa Rock e ".“. %F
Karakami Site ’." o o
H5HIEHP12) -* i
Kojima Shrine =)
NS - .
e ~Uchime Bay
Shrines and Kagura on Iki psBE (P11)

~Kofun Artifacts
HIEEOL 5 (P9)

SIRZE
Ikikoku Museum

—XESME (P6~7)

Harunotsuji Site
FEDitiE  (P4~5)

BIE D & SIEHE (P14)

Gonoura Port
BwE |5

A Indgji Port
 Entsuji Temple EESE
EEMET

Buddha Statues of Kurose
BRDILG (P17)

Takehotsuji
/i (P11

ynsyesed ol

(=

22.?;;5???935‘-’9 00|

Detailed map

(P15)

o g
Mt. Shiratake
B

B4V V7 (P37) Detailed map

S~y 7 (P37)

To Sasepo (e gy

Yagatama Park
« REERE

Aokata Port| Kashiragashima Island
CREAT/ T a

Stone Pagodas
of Hinoshima (p27)
HEDORER

Shinkamigoto
Japanese Missions 7‘%

| e
to Tang China(p32)

A Tainoura Port
& iR/ s
BEE o
Wakamatsu Island @
@ """" ' EHWE

HEHE

Goto Islands
BT E

Sacred Red Rice of Tsutsu
FROFKITE (P16)

Warship of Mt. Sanno
\WFEEW (P28)

Naru Island ‘\_
=EE

=HE

Hisz;lf%,éland

Kentoshi Sites in the

Southern Goto

A
o
z
©
=
S
Z.
—
o
&

Islands (P34)
ThREDEEERLH Takahama
Swimming
Beach =
BRBKAE
i ° AMt. Ondake O N\,
Goto [ 9353k (e
B Osezaki Lighthouse = Myojoin Temple (P30)
KABTE FRERR

" Daihoji Temple®a1)
REF

m Exploring Japan’s Heritage : The Castle Town of Izuhara

(A2t )

W JE D3R WY

(® Site of Shimizuyama Castle (P20) t Remains of Samurai

Residences
2l L RREH
Site of Kaneishi Castle (P21)
and Garden
Hachlmangu Shrlne

A ER

=it m
Kokubunji Temple
Korean Missions L e

.. to Tokugawa Japan
. EBEEEERE | (P22~P23)

i Tsushima Museum
(14) O | HEEnE P24)
| (170088

Banshoin Temr;le and the @ 12 )
Tombs of the So Family (P18~P19) elzuhara Poséjgifg}gg

HikRERREM o o
Tsushima City Hall  Tourist Information Center

wEm@m  Fureai Dokoro Tsushima

SHTHF

BRABESHBES

@ @ RE

Ofunae Dry Dock Site

°
Izuhara Kuta Post Office

BABEESNBLLOLE

lzuhara Port Seizanji Temple ®
BELS

(P25) N

Izuhara Post

Ofunae (Dry Dock) IZUhara Port Terminal
Remains I | LI MBS — I
~

B Kentoshi Sites

in the Northern Goto Islands b 75 o3& 4 52 B

Kentoshi Sites in the
Northern Goto
Islands (P33)

L REDEEELH

Tomojiri Stone
ELLYUE

Aokata Shrine ®
Bh#ET
Aokata Port
BHE °
R_’T;, Former site of Hime Shrine
ECEs
Tomojiri Stone Hime Shrine
IEAVOE-N ) ) Bt
N
@ il
54
Arikawa Port
@ Kinpoze Az
SRR Nakadori Island
RiES
Hi . Mt.Sanno
inoshima Island | @ WELL
b 2 Tainoura Port
Mikanoura o @ 8/
=H/# Wakamatsu Islandiﬂ Y
bos e
- \
Narao Port
Naru Island e SEREB
‘Port =
Mifune-sama .
() IR

37
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